
417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 

 

   
  

 

City Council Agenda 
The City Council meeting is open to the public and will be held at City Hall. 

Meetings will be streamed via Facebook Live ( https://www.facebook.com/cityofvalleyfalls) Please email questions to cityadmin@valleyfalls.org prior to the meeting. 
 
October 20, 2021 6:30PM 
Regular Meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL – City Council and Staff  
 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting of October 6, 2021 
 
INVOICES - $14,668.60 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS & GUESTS 

A. Agler & Gaeddert CPA - Harold Mayes  
 

ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, & PROCLAMATIONS 
A. Liquor Ordinance # 3-304.2 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Pledge of Allegiance on Agenda 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. 2020 Annual Audit 
B. 2021 CPA Service Contract with Agler & Gaeddert 
C. Shipping Containers & Tiny Home Regulation   
D. Public Comments Policy 
E. City Prosecutor Contract 

 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
TABLED ITEMS: 
 
REPORTS: 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Audree Aguilera 
MAYOR: Lucy Thomas 
PUBLIC WORKS: Bill McCoy  
POLICE: Brandon Bines 
CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS/ FEEDBACK/ IDEAS 
 
PENDING PROJECTS: 
CDBG Sewer Project – Application Submitted. Pending approval in January 2022. 
CDBG Street Project – Pending start date from contractor.  
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) - $174,918.00 allocated. $87,459.00(1st half) received.  
Installation of Automatic Water Meters: 94 installed to date 
FEMA Reimbursement – Close out. $41,102.88 received for City. $4,538.07 received for Ball Fields.  
 

https://www.facebook.com/cityofvalleyfalls
mailto:cityadmin@valleyfalls.org


417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org                                                                                                                                                                              Page 2  

ANNOUNCEMENTS/ COMMUNICATIONS: 
 Haunted Barn at 4H Grounds on October 30th. 
 Trunk or Treat is October 31st. Parade starts a 5:00PM. Boo-Bur cost is $5/person or $25 for group of 7. 
 Fall back and set you clocks back an hour. Daylight savings time ends November 7th.  
 City Offices Closed on November 11th in Observance of Veteran’s Day. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
ADJOURNMENT 



CITY OF VALLEY FALLS 
October 6, 2021 

 
Open Hearing 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Mayor Lucy Thomas.  Council members present were 
Mike Glissman, Salih Doughramaji, Jennifer Ingraham, and Gary McKnight.  Judy Rider was absent. 
 
Staff present:  Audree Aguilera, City Administrator, Bill McCoy, Public Works Director, Chief Brandon 
Bines, Leonard Buddenbohm, City Attorney, and Chris Weishaar, City Clerk. 
 
Others present were Lori Glissman, Dayna Lloyd, Phillip Huffman, Dr. James Rider, Scott Heinen, and 
Dianne Heinen. 
 
The minutes from the September 15, 2021, meetings were presented.   
Mike moved to approve the meeting minutes.  Gary seconded the motion.  Motion carried 3-0-1 
 
KDHE Hearing minutes. 
Mike moved to approve the KDHE meeting minutes.  Gary seconded the motion.  Motion carried 3-0-1 
 
Presentation: 
Rotary President, Phillip Huffman presented Chief Brandon Bines and Mayor Lucy Thomas with a check 
for $4,500.00 to purchase the Omigo software for the Police Department. 
 
Swearing In:  Mayor Lucy Thomas presided of the swearing in of new City Administrator Audree Aguilera. 
 
Petitions, Proclamations, Request, Complaints, Visitors, Etc.:  
Public Comments:   
Dayna Lloyd and Lori Glissman spoke about the Porch Crawl on October 9th, from 4:00 – 7:00pm. 
The cost is $30.00 per person and $50.00 per couple.  There will be trucks and trailers to take 
participants to each property. 
 
Chris Weishaar advised she was contacted by Prosperity 4H Club about community service weekend. 
Chris advised the group would be cleaning up trash and limbs at the park.  Salih advised the intersections 
at Oak & K-4 and Bluemound and K-16 that was in need of attention if they had time. 
 
Ordinances:   
Standard Traffic Ordinance #14-117 which repeals ordinance #14-116 was read. 
Gary moved to approve ordinance #14-117.  Mike seconded motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Uniform Public Offense Code Ordinance #11-115 which repeals ordinance #11-114 was read. 
Mike moved to approve ordinance #11-115.  Gary seconded motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes  Page 2 
 
Ordinance #3-215 was reviewed.  Audree recommended that the council adopt the States Sunday liquor 
sales hours of 9:00 a.m. to 8:00p.m. 
Gary made a motion to approve changing the liquor sale hours.  Mike seconded motion.  Motion carried 
4-0. 
 
Committee Reports: 
 Administrative:  Audree advised Lucy took her around to meet business owners and she has 
spent most of her time organizing and getting acquainted with staff. 
 Sewer/Water/Streets/Alleys/ Parks/Pool:   
Chad Spencer is out with Covid 19.  He will be able to return to work on October 9th. 
The tree has been planted in the City Park in memory of Rick Johnson.  The plaque will be placed right 
before the dedication. 
They are keeping up on mowing the best they can. 
Have got some trees removed off the Tucking lot.  Will need to have some of the stumps ground out at a 
price of $150 each. 
They will be installing the 2 new water meters at the houses on 16th street.  Just waiting on DigSafe to 
mark the area. 
MidAmerica Valve is ordering the valve for the discharge lagoon.  Will take approx. 12 weeks to build.  
Then Bill will coordinate with Douglas Pump to get it installed. 
KDHE strongly suggests getting a generator and a hookup at the Linn Street lift station in the event of a 
power outage.  Bill will get with Heinen PHE on what size would be needed and the costs. 
Called Corp about getting the fence fixed from trees falling on it in order to mow up to the fence. 
Price on sheets of metal to put on pool car port cover are $112 per sheet from Menards. 
The pool has been drained and the system winterized.  The tarps will be removed within the next week. 
 
 Fire board:   No Report 
 Police:  Made two drug arrests – 1 felony – 1 misdemeanor  
Omnigo RMS software.  Will get software installation going now that donation has been received. 
Officer Bohannon is working on his own now and doing great job. 
Hired new officer Trey Davidson.  Will need to go to Law Enforcement Academy in January, 2022. 
Demo of Digiticket.  Works with Omnigo software.  Audree advised at this time with other expenses it is 
not in the budget at this time. 
Getting CJIS access for the vehicles. 
Purplewave has been here to take pictures of the Jeep and will post online. 
Charger had issues and some hoses needed to be replaced.  The Highway Patrol contacted getting on list 
for one of their vehicles.  $28,500.00. 
 Health Code:  No Report 
 VFEDC:   No Report 
 Swimming Pool:  No Report 
 
No complaints have been filed. 
 



Meeting Minutes  Page 3 
 
New Business:   
Change office hours from 8:00a.m. to 4:00p.m.  Later hours by appointment.  Take afternoons off. 
Gary makes motion to change hours.  Jennifer seconds motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Meet and Greet – October 14th at 7:00p.m. at the Kendall Bank Hall.  Would like all employees to attend. 
Ice Cream Social. 
 
Work session to get a projects list made so Bill knows projects that need to be completed and a timeline 
to have completed. 
 
Audree requested approval to purchase a new laptop for her office.  The current one was purchased 
when Denise was still here. 
Gary made a motion to approve the purchase.  Mike seconds the motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
City credit cards for Audree Aguilera, Christine Weishaar, Bill McCoy, Brandon Bines, and the pool with a 
total limit for all cards is $9,000.00. 
Gary made a motion to approve the credit cards.  Jennifer seconds the motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Signature card at Kendall Bank needs to be updated to add Audree D. Aguilera, Christine A. Weishaar, 
Lucy Thomas, Michael Glissman, Salih Doughramaji, Gary McKnight, Jennifer Ingraham, and Judy Rider. 
Gary made a motion to approve the signature card.  Jennifer seconds the motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Brandon asked about needing Emergency Management Cards.  Audree advised she would check about 
getting a login to do what is needed for the City. 
 
Audree addressed changing the City Prosecutor to Andrew Werring.  Andrew will attend the next council 
meeting. 
Gary made a motion to approve hiring Andrew.  Jennifer seconds the motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Discussion Items:    
 
Pledge of Elegance and Prayer.  Audree asked for input on councils’ thoughts. 
 
Audree asked if the council had a problem changing the department reports to the end of the meeting. 
Council had no problem with the change. 
 
Audree made a suggestion that department heads only need attend one meeting a month.  The council 
is of the opinion that it is a good idea to have the department head at each meeting.  A paper report is 
ok occasionally.  Will revisit after the first of the year. 
 
Electronic Agenda Packet – Audree’s plans is to send electronic agenda packets.  If the council wants 
paper copies to let her know. 



Meeting Minutes  Page 4 
 
Work Session to discuss the possible uses for the American Rescue Plan money.   
 
Land Bank – Audree asked about the possibility of using the Land Bank for the city.  Audree advised she 
would be happy to do a presentation about it and the benefits.  Salih asked that she present it the work 
session night. 
 
Work Session is scheduled for December 8th, at 6:30p.m. 
 

VOUCHERS 
The September 15, 2021, Vouchers were presented.  Gary moved to approve.  Jennifer seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Gary moved to adjourn the meeting.  Jennifer seconded the motion.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
 

APPROVED: ______________________________ 
 LUCILLE THOMAS, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST:  ___________________________________ 
 CHRISTINE WEISHAAR, CITY CLERK 



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 
 

COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2021 
 
 
INVOICES IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF: $14,668.60 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF KANSAS 
 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
I hereby certify that the attached bills are just, correct, and remain unpaid, and that the amount therein is 
actually due and owing according to law.  
 

Approved by: 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Administrator 

 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of October, 2021 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

   

  



















CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3-304.2 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING HOURS OF SALES OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR 
AND CEREAL MALT BEVERAGE IN THE ORIGINAL PACKAGE WITHIN THE CITY OF 
VALLEY FALLS, KANSAS 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF VALLEY FALLS, 

KANSAS; 
 
SECTION 1. Pursuit to K.S.A 41-2911, the sale at retail of alcoholic liquor and cereal malt 

beverage in the original package shall not be sold on: 
(a) Sunday before 9 a.m. or after 8 p.m.; 
(b) On Easter Sunday, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day; or  
(c) Before 6 a.m. or after 12 p.m. on any day when the sale is permitted 

 
SECTION 2. REPEAL.  Ordinance No. 3-215 and 3-304.1 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

publication in the Valley Falls Vindicator, the official city paper of the City of Valley Falls, Jefferson County, 
Kansas. 
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THE 20th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021. 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 20th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021. 

 
 
   
 LUCY THOMAS 
 MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
CHRISTINE A. WEISHAAR 
CITY CLERK 

   
  















































CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 
 

City Administrator Report 
City Council October 20, 2021 

 
1) Employee Evaluations sent out. Due Nov 8th. 
2) Burn Pile burned on Oct 7. 
3) Purplewave Auction for Police Jeep on Oct 26. Currently at $1,350. 
4) City Clerk & I attended training for our website.  
5) Updated website. Will add pictures next. 
6) Updated phones to reflect new office hours. 
7) New city administrator computer arrived and setup. 
8) Sent remaining 2020 and all 2021 building permits to County Appraiser. 
9) Working on retention schedule and file organization 
10) Met with Keith Jeffers, Jefferson County Emergency Management Director 
11) Attended the League of Kansas Municipalities Annual Conference in Topeka Oct 9-11 
12) Spoke with Alex Darby and Bettis will have a schedule by the end of the week for CDBG Street 

Project.  
 
 

Financials 
Fund Balances As Of:  
Fund # Fund Name Balance 

01 General  $116,632.95 
03 Water  $114,058.29 
04 Sewer  $258,603.67 
05 Capital Improvement $9,007.56 
06 Street & Highway $111,599.68 
07 Special Equipment Reserve $5,731.71 
08 Solid Waste $44,980.53 
09 Bond Fund $300,065.65 

 
 

 
 

   
  


	Agenda 10.20.2021
	Council Minutes 10-06-21
	AP
	Vouchers facesheet
	20211018155339

	Ordinance 3-304.2 Alcohol Sales
	ORDINANCE NO. 3-304.2

	2020 Audit
	City Admin Report

